
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
AGRICULTURE ADVISORY BOARD 

 
Chairman – Norman Harris (05) Dick Zobel (02) Steven Sawyer (06) Jon Olsen (10) 
Vice Chair – James Skinner (09) Mark Stahl (03) Derylee “Lee” Hecimovich (07) Erik “Moe” Johnson (11) 
VACANT (01) Jenny VanderWeele (04) Donald Brainard (08) Branden VanderWeele (12) 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING            JANUARY 16, 2019 
DSJ BUILDING                     4:30 P.M. 
LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

III. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Limit 3 minutes) 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. December 19, 2018 

V. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Draft Response to the Ad Hoc Agriculture Committee Recommendations 

B. Staff Report  

1.Ray Nix – update on Fish Creek NRMU 

VI. MEMBER COMMENTS (Limit to 3 minutes) 

VII. NEXT MEETING 

A. February 20, 2019, 4:30 pm – DSJ Building Lower Level Conference Room 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



  Page 1 of 2 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 1 
AGRICULTURE ADVISORY BOARD 2 

 3 
Chairman -  Norman Harris (05) Dick Zobel (02) Steven Sawyer  (06) Jon Olsen (10) 
Vice Chair -  James Skinner (09) Mark Stahl (03) Derylee “Lee” Hecimovich (07) Erik “Moe” Johnson (11) 
Bruce Bush (01) Jenny VanderWeele (04) Donald Brainard (08) Braden VanderWeele (12) 

 4 
DRAFT MINUTES 5 

 6 
REGULAR MEETING December 19, 2018 7 
DSJ BUILDING 4:30 P.M. 8 
LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE ROOM 9 
 10 
I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 11 

Dr. Harris called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m. 12 
Members present and establishing a quorum were: Dr. Norman Harris, James 13 
Skinner, Dick Zobel, Jon Olsen, Erik Johnson, Derylee Hecimovich, Mark Stahl, 14 
Steven Sawyer and Jenny VanderWeele. 15 
Members Absent and Excused: Donald Brainard, Bruce Bush, Branden 16 
VanderWeele 17 
Staff present:  Tracy McDaniel, Asset Manager 18 

Jill Irsik, CD Dept. Admin. Specialist 19 
 20 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE –  21 
MOTION: Mr. Skinner moved, Mr. Zobel 2nd.  Agenda approved   22 

 23 
III. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Limit to 3 minutes) 24 

None 25 
 26 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 27 
A. November 14, 2018 28 

MOTION:  Mr. Johnson moved, Mr. Skinner 2nd.  Minutes approved. 29 
 30 

V. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 31 
A. Request to modify 5-acre home site – Alaska Peak Properties 32 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the soils and topography of site.  Everything looked kosher. 33 
MOTION:  Mr. Johnson moved, Ms. VanderWeele 2nd.  All in favor. 34 
 35 

B. Staff Report  36 
1. Ad Hoc Agriculture Committee Recommendations for Ag Board specific 37 

functions 38 
 Ms. McDaniel handed out the recommendation for review, and advised that 39 

the board work on these items during future meetings. 40 
 Board would like to invite Senior Appraiser Steve Gallagher to a future 41 

board meeting to discuss tax appraisals on ag land. 42 
 43 

2.  Ray Nix – update on Fish Creek NRMU 44 
 A memo was included in the packet giving the board an update to the 45 

NRMU plan update. 46 
 47 



  Page 2 of 2 

VI. MEMBER COMMENTS (limit to 3 minutes) 48 
 Mr. Sawyer – New to the board and is looking forward to participating. 49 
 Ms. VanderWeele – Just returned from the Great Lakes Expo, which was held in 50 

Grand Rapids, MI.  Felt like it was a great opportunity for Alaskan farmers to go 51 
outside and learn about the industry from larger farming communities that are doing a 52 
lot of the same stuff that we are doing. 53 

 Mr. Johnson – Nenana Totchaket ag area is looking very promising because the 54 
Nenana Native Association just got nine million dollars to get the bridge across, 55 
which is what we have been waiting 30 some years for.  There is 130,000 acres 56 
designated as ag land, with another adjacent 80,000 acres, which are un-designated 57 
for anything.  Will not be present at the January meeting. 58 

 Mr. Skinner – asked board where Alaska is with the hemp and cannabis production.  59 
Mr. Johnson suggested contacting the Plant Material Center. 60 

 Dr. Harris – hopes everybody has a good holiday season and a happy New Year. 61 
 62 

VII. NEXT MEETING 63 
A. January 16, 2019 - 4:30 pm - DSJ Building Lower Level Conference Room 64 

 65 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 66 

Dr. Harris adjourned the meeting at 5:05 p.m. 67 
 68 

 69 
 70 
 71 
              72 
       Norman Rex Harris, Chairman 73 
ATTEST: 74 
 75 
 76 
       77 
Jill Irsik, 78 
Department Administrative Specialist 79 

 80 

 81 



DRAFT – Recommendation of the Ad Hoc Ag Committee Page 1 of 3 
 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Agriculture Advisory Board Members  
 
FROM:  Tracy K. McDaniel, Asset Manager   
 
DATE:  January 8, 2019 for the January 16, 2019 meeting 
 
RE: Draft response to the Ad Hoc Agriculture Committee Recommendations, 

Resolution Serial No. 15-001, 

 

As requested at our December 2018 meeting, for your review is staff’s draft responses to the 

recommendations of the ad hoc committee regarding the specific functions of the Agriculture 

Advisory Board.  This is a working document and staff is looking for comments, additions and 

suggestions from the board.   

 

1) Deal only with ag issues and make recommendation to the assembly regarding these 
issues.  

a. The assigned staff presents requests and legislations to the board that require 
assembly approval and/or Manager’s Decision. 

 
2) Determine how ag land conservation is to be implemented and how “no net loss” of 

agricultural lands is defined. 
a. Staff proposes “fallow” as an agricultural use/activity.   

i. Allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie fallow in which it is 
plowed and tilled but left unseeded; 

ii. Allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie dormant because of 
adverse agricultural market conditions; and 

iii.  Allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie dormant because the 
land is enrolled in a local, state, or federal conservation program (for fee 
simple property with Ag covenants only – Title 23). 

iv. Allowing naturally occurring grasslands and nonindustrial private 
forestland. 



DRAFT – Recommendation of the Ad Hoc Ag Committee Page 2 of 3 
 

b. Protection of the long-term viability of the nation’s food supply by preventing 
conversion of productive working land to non-agricultural uses.   

c. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of agricultural land into sprawling, low-
density development. 

d. Retaining the development rights through covenants, conditions and restrictions 
allows an owner to voluntary preserve farmland in perpetuity for continued 
production of food and fiber, similar to a conservation easement achieved by a 
lower market agricultural value vs. the fair market value of the land. 

 
3) Review the equity of current tax policy on agriculture parcels. 

a. Scheduled for the March 2019 meeting. 
 

4) Explore parcel size allowance of less than the required 40 acres minimum. 
a. As adopted by Resolution 15-06, “Borough-owned property, smaller than 40 acres, 

being considered for future sale is considered for agricultural classification and 
restrictions if more than 50% of soils are class III, or class IV, or Natural Resource 
Conservation Service classified soils of local importance and/or there is other land 
in the general area classified and restricted to agricultural use.” 

 
5) Review agriculture covenants/restrictions within Matanuska-Susitna Borough Titles 13, 

15 and 23 and recommend changes, if any.  
a. Scheduled for review at the February 20, 2019, meeting, identifying the pros and 

cons on conversion of agricultural rights to agricultural conditions, covenants and 
restrictions.  Through this process, staff and the board will identify the differences 
of the agricultural restrictions between the different titles.   

b. Additionally, staff will prepare a packet with the recorded covenants for each 
agricultural sale program for the board to review. 

 
6) Determine if current subdivision requirements on these parcels is adequate or too 

restrictive.  Below is the platting requirements that address the subdivision of a 5-acre 
home site only for Title 13 properties.  Any other subdivision requires following standard 
platting regulations with assembly approval.  

a.    Title 43.10.100 ACCESS REQUIRED. 

 (E)    A subdivision plat whose sole purpose is to separate/divide a 
home/headquarters site in a Matanuska-Susitna Borough agricultural rights 
parcel under former MSB Title 13 is exempt from the road construction standards 
of the MSB Subdivision Construction Manual; provided, that the following 
conditions are fulfilled: 

(1)    prior to preliminary plat submittal the agriculture rights property 
owner is to obtain assembly approval of the sale of the home/headquarters 
site through an application made to the borough land and resource 
management division; 
(2)    the maximum parcel size is five acres for the home/headquarters site; 

https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/html/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough13/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough13.html#13


DRAFT – Recommendation of the Ad Hoc Ag Committee Page 3 of 3 
 

(3)    only two parcels can be created from the farm unit parcel, the 
home/headquarters site and the remainder; 
(4)    the applicant demonstrates that legal access as defined in MSB 
43.20.120, Legal Access, exists to all parcels or tracts created, and the 
suitability of the legal access for future residential road construction is 
documented by a land surveyor or civil engineer hired by the applicant; 
(5)    the property is to be surveyed and monumented and a plat submitted 
in conformance with MSB 43.15.016, Preliminary plat submittal and 
approval, 43.15.049, Final plat; general provisions, and 43.15.051, Final 
plat; submitted; 
(6)    a plat note declaring that the borough is not responsible for road 
construction or road maintenance; and 
(7)    a plat note restricting further subdivision of the parcels being created. 

b. 43.20.120 LEGAL ACCESS. 
(A)    The applicant shall provide the platting division a right-of-way document 
verifying the existence of legal access. In this title, legal access exists only if one of 
the following is met: 

(1)    An unrestricted, public right-of-way connects the subdivision to a 
constructed public transportation system and one of the following is met: 

(a)    The applicant’s land surveyor submits to the platting division 
for review and approval documentation and an opinion 
demonstrating that the right-of-way exists; or 
(b)    The applicant provides copies of borough-accepted recorded 
conveyances creating the public easement or right-of-way where 
the access is located, or that access or right-of-way is maintained 
by the state of Alaska or an incorporated municipality; or 
(c)    The applicant provides documentation satisfactory to the 
borough demonstrating the legal access is guaranteed through 
judicial decree; 

(2)    The right-of-way is an easement or fee interest at least 50 feet in 
width dedicated or irrevocably conveyed to the public; or 

(B)    The applicant proves that the proposed access can be constructed practically 
and economically within the legal access documented. 
 

7) Other identified topics as requested by the assembly. 
a. Currently, none identified. 

 

 



January 8, 2019 Status Update 
 
Subject:  Natural Resource Management Units, Plan Update 
 
Provided in your packet is the Natural Resource Management Units Plan (Plan), 
Volume I, drafted by the Community Development Department.  The entire Plan is 
in four volumes and includes over 800 pages of information.  The updated Plan will 
include current forest management regulation, current land use information; and 
the previously excluded Fish Creek Unit will be included in the updated Plan as well.   
 
Volume I is a cleanup of the Plan to include, rather than preclude, multi use 
opportunities for Borough land and inclusion of the Fish Creek Management Unit 
into the plan.   
 
Volumes II & III of the Plan are also under review and we anticipate providing draft 
updates of Volumes II & III of the Plan to the board in March 2019.  Volumes II & III 
explains each NRMU in more detail. 
 
If you have any additional questions or seek additional information, please let me 
know. 
 
Ray Nix 
Natural Resource Manager 
Community Development Department 
Land & Resource Management 
Matanuska Susitna Borough 
(907) 861-7863 
Ray.Nix@matsugov.us 

 

file:///C:/Users/nixr0113/AppData/Roaming/Microsoft/Word/Ray.Nix@matsugov.us































































































































































































































































































	Ag Board Agenda - January 16, 2019
	Minutes -December 19, 2018
	2019-01-07 Response to Specific Functions
	Ag Board Status Update NRMU 01082018 rgn
	NRMU vol 1 - DRAFT

